
ARIZONA STATE SENATE 
46TH LEGISLATURE 

FIRST REGULAR SESSION 
 

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE ON 
FINANCE 

 
DATE:  January 20, 2003 TIME:   1:30 p.m. ROOM: SHR 1 

 
CHAIRMAN: Senator Martin VICE CHAIRMAN: Senator Harper 

  
ANALYST: Denisse Gee COMMITTEE  

SECRETARY:   
Nancy L. DeMichele 

ASSISTANT   Lace Collins 
ANALYST: 
INTERN: Sharad Desai 

 

ATTENDANCE BILLS 

 

Committee Members Pr Ab Ex Bill Number Disposition 
Senator Brown X   SB 1030 DPA 
Senator Burns X     
Senator Cheuvront X     
Senator Garcia X     
Senator Jarrett X     
Senator Leff X     
Senator Weiers X     
Senator Harper, Vice Chairman X     
Senator Martin, Chairman X     

 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

GOVERNOR’S APPOINTMENTS 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name Position Recommendation 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Committee on Finance 

 2 January 20, 2003 

 
 
Chairman Martin called the meeting to order at 1:35 p.m., and attendance was noted.   
 
ADOPTION OF FINANCE COMMITTEE RULES 
 

Senator Harper moved to adopt the Finance Committee Rules as written.  The motion 
CARRIED by voice vote (Attachment A). 
 

APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEE OF REFERENCE 
 
Senator Martin named the following members to the 2003 Finance Committee of Reference: 

Senator Martin, Chair  
Senator Harper 
Senator Jarrett 
Senator Brown 
Senator Garcia 

 
INTRODUCTION OF STAFF 
 
Senator Martin introduced the Finance Committee Staff for the 2003 Legislative Session: 

Denisse Gee, Finance Analyst 
Lace Collins, Assistant Finance Analyst 
Sharad Desai, Finance Intern 
Nancy DeMichele, Committee Secretary 
Mark Swenson, Majority Leadership Policy Advisor 
Matthew Bailey, Majority Leadership Staff Intern 
Kim Baker, Democratic Leadership Policy Advisor 
Daniel Graver, Democratic Leadership Staff Intern 
Joshua Crum, Page 
Kimi Markins, Page 

 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
SB 1030 – state employee self-insurance; repeal mandate – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Denisse Gee, Finance Analyst, explained SB 1030 is an emergency measure that removes the 
mandate upon the Arizona Department of Administration (DOA) to implement a self-insurance 
program for health and dental care coverage for state employees by October 1, 2003.  She stated 
that an amendment is being offered, which removes the requirement that the Joint Legislative Budget 
Committee (JLBC) approve any future plans by DOA to self-insure and instead places it with JLBC for 
review. 
 
Senator Martin announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment B). 
  

Senator Harper moved SB 1030 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.   
 
Senator Harper moved the 3-line Martin amendment dated 01/15/03, 3:05 p.m., be 
ADOPTED (Attachment C).  The motion CARRIED by a voice vote. 
 



  Committee on Finance 

 3 January 20, 2003 

Senator Harper moved SB 1030 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.  The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 9-0-0 (Attachment 1). 

 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Overview of State Revenues and Dynamic Forecasting  
 
Richard Stavneak, JLBC Director, gave a presentation on State revenues and forecasts 
(Attachment D).  He presented slides with descriptive graphs and stated he would explain volatility, 
tax sources, and work accomplished during the past summer on dynamic forecasting.  Among the 
topics presented included general fund revenues, sales tax collections, individual and corporate 
income tax collections, and baseline revenues.  He commented that legislation passed in 2002 
required JLBC to add the item relating to behavioral impact and how it affects fiscal notes.  He 
explained that behavioral response relates to tax and spending decisions that may change consumer 
and business incomes and the price of goods.  He presented examples of the recent work undertaken 
by JLBC with relatively inexpensive economic models to assist in providing behavioral responses and 
impacts.   
 
Mr. Stavneak concluded by stating that acquiring the economic models would improve JLBC’s 
estimates of multiplier effects, and may increase turn-around time for fiscal notes.  He emphasized 
that although the new models will provide more information regarding a bill’s potential impact, fiscal 
notes must still be viewed cautiously.  He commented that the Legislature will still need to decide how 
to use the information for bill “scoring,” and suggested it is probably not worthwhile to use the models 
with revenue bills that amount to $10,000 or less.  He said he would suggest reserving the use of the 
models for legislation of a larger magnitude where the secondary impact will have a significant impact 
on the numbers.  
 
State of the Economy 
 
Elliot D. Pollack, Elliot D. Pollack and Company, gave a slide presentation on the state of the 
economy (Attachment E).  He provided comparisons between national and Arizona’s economic 
standards.  He noted that mortgage rates continue to be near record 40 year lows, and has kept 
housing from essentially having no decline in this recession period.  Auto sales, which normally 
decline during recessions, have also remained flat during this recession.  He indicated that this is 
good news during a recession, but not so good during a recovery period because of a lack of pent-up 
demand.  He said the recession probably ended in the first quarter of last year, and we are 
approximately one year into a recovery period.   
 
Mr. Pollack stated that consumer confidence continues to be depressed since September 11, 2001, 
however the underlying factors are improving.  Real incomes adjusting for inflation are increasing. 
Unemployment rates have moved up and are based mainly on demographics of the age 
characteristics of the population.  However, he pointed out that this has been a jobless recovery.  He 
noted that mortgage refinancing has been at record levels and commented on the uses of disposable 
income.  He noted that refinancing has helped the consumer and has kept the economy stronger than 
it would have been otherwise.   
 
Mr. Pollack provided some statistics on retail and auto sales.  He noted that industrial production has 
started to increase and is normal for this stage of the cycle.  He commented on the Y-2K issue and 
said that equipment is now three years old.  He expects that within the next six months to a year 
businesses will have to begin retooling their computers again, which will increase business equipment 



  Committee on Finance 

 4 January 20, 2003 

spending.  He noted that interest rates are the lowest in several years, however, rates will increase as 
the economy recovers.  
 
Mr. Pollack stated that the national long-term outlook appears to be good, however, the recovery will 
be slow.  He said any unforeseen event that affects real income would result in another recession.  
He highlighted certain statistics and stated that Arizona’s economy is turning modestly positive.  High-
tech recovery will be slow.  Commercial and residential real estate are past the peak.  Services, 
especially tourism, will be slow in recovering and will affect 13 of the 15 counties in the State.  He 
indicated that the events of September 11, 2001, and the recession affected many facets in Arizona.  
Housing has been a positive because of low interest rates.  Commercial construction, with less 
demand, slowed dramatically. Manufacturing is having its weakest period since 1975.  Commercial 
aviation has weakened due to less demand for jet engines, and tourism will continue to be weak. 
Arizona is the second fastest growing state in terms of population, fifth in new residents, second in 
domestic migration, eighth in international migration, and is the twentieth largest state; therefore, 
population will continue to grow.  As a result, housing will probably continue to be strong and 
affordable.  He noted that each time 2.8 people move to Arizona, a housing unit is needed.  Even 
though the economy has slowed down, Arizona will likely add 140,000 more people this year.   
 
Mr. Pollack presented statistics regarding office absorption activity, retail space construction activity 
and vacancy rates, and industrial space construction and vacancy rates.    He said the good news is 
that the long-term dynamics of the State have not changed, and Arizona will remain one of the fastest 
growing states.  However, he said that overall the rate of growth will accelerate slowly.  
 
In response to Senator Leff, Mr. Pollack explained that people continue to move to Arizona despite 
fewer jobs.  He said Arizona is still a destination that is favored by people who tend to move around 
the country.   
 
Senator Martin wanted to know how the migration would affect the employment market. Mr. Pollack 
responded that in the long run, it is positive.  He said supply and demand will determine any pressure 
on wages.  Senator Martin asked Mr. Pollack to comment on the previous presentation concerning 
revenue growth.  Mr. Pollack replied that JLBC puts forth a significant amount of effort in assembling 
the information in depth.  He said that until there are signs of a definitive recovery, he would suggest 
that the Legislature play it “close to the vest” because the exact timing of a recovery is uncertain.   He 
added that if an unforeseen event happened, the economy would remain weaker for a longer period 
of time. 
 
Georganna Meyer, Chief Economist, Arizona Department of Revenue (DOR), offered a slide 
presentation entitled Arizona Income Taxes (Attachment F).  She stated she would be able to provide 
more information, if required, by DOR’s Office of Economic Research and Analysis.  She provided a 
background of the history of Arizona’s individual income tax and the procedure for calculating those 
taxes.  She indicated that if dividends are removed from income as proposed in President Bush’s tax 
reduction plan, it will impact the State by approximately $70 million.  She explained the various credits 
that are allowed.   
 
Senator Leff asked whether there is any way to know how the credits are being utilized.  Ms. Meyer 
responded that more is being done to disclose as much information as allowed.  She indicated that a 
bill passed recently allowed DOR to release information on credits prior to 1994 if DOR contacted the 
taxpayer and it was determined that it was not a competitive disadvantage to the taxpayer.  She said 
DOR attempts to release updated credit reports three times a year with the first hopefully available in 
March.  She noted she would provide a copy to the Committee at that time.  She said DOR is not able 



  Committee on Finance 

 5 January 20, 2003 

to release information related to a tax return as it is confidential.  She added that DOR follows the 
Internal Revenue Code guidelines on that issue.  Senator Martin suggested a follow-up on this matter 
would be appropriate at a later time. 
 
Ms. Meyer stated that in 1999 taxpayers were refunded or used $159 million in individual income tax 
credits with $13.5 million in credit carryforwards.  In response to Senator Martin, Ms. Meyer said that 
the alternate fuel program was the major factor of that carryforward amount.   
 
Ms. Meyer highlighted the following individual income tax items as listed on the handout: 

• Individual income tax components 
• Withholding collections 
• Refunds 
• Net individual income tax collections 

 
Ms. Meyer provided historic background on corporate income taxes and highlighted the following 
items from the handout: 

• Corporate income tax credits and cost of those credits 
• Corporate income tax components 
• Corporate estimated payments 
• Corporate collections with returns plus billings 
• Corporate refunds 
• Net Corporate income tax revenues 

 
Senator Martin indicated he would like to have additional information between the data provided by 
Mr. Pollack and the double-weighted sales factor with the increase in manufacturing and corporate 
revenue.  He said currently Arizona is losing manufacturing jobs and those jobs are being converted 
to other types of lower paying jobs.  He is interested to know whether something can be done to bring 
back some of that activity. 
 
Senator Martin suggested holding the remaining DOR presentations until the next meeting.  The 
Committee and DOR agreed that would be acceptable. 
 
Public Testimony 
 
Robert J. Rosepink, Attorney, representing himself, stated he hoped the Committee understands 
that the various taxes described earlier are considered voluntary compliance.  He indicated he has 
practiced in the area of trusts and estates in the State for 27 years.  He said he would like to point out 
that DOR does a magnificent job with the resources granted by the State.  He noted there are no 
audits conducted of any trust income tax returns.  He added that DOR relies on the Internal Revenue 
Service as far as compliance with the estate tax law.  Mr. Rosepink noted that private enterprise 
could play a role in the concept of contract auditing.  He said a number of changes would be required 
in certain State laws to permit contract auditing.  He commented that it is both a financial and moral 
issue because many citizens pay attorneys and accountants each year to assist them in complying 
with the laws enacted.  He said it is unfair to them because others either ignore the law or are 
ignorant of its provisions and are not taxed because of lack of audits.  He stated he has prepared a 
White Paper on this issue and would provide copies to the Committee.   
 
Senator Martin thanked everyone for participating today and said his goal is to work to do what is best 
for Arizona.  He said the budget shortfall will present many challenges in looking for the best way to 



  Committee on Finance 

 6 January 20, 2003 

solve problems today and in the long term.  He commented he looks forward to working with 
Committee members and staff to get the job accomplished. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Nancy L. DeMichele 
Committee Secretary 
 
(Tapes and attachments on file in the Secretary of the Senate’s Office/Resource Center, Room 115.) 
 
 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


